
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Project: ENGINSP4, Requirements Contract for Professional Services for Inspection and 

Material Testing of Water Main and Sewer Pipes and Appurtenances at Various 
Locations Throughout the United States and Foreign Countries 

 
PIN:  8502011VP0045P 
 
Date:   Wednesday, July 27, 2011 
 
To:        All attendees 
 
From:   Kareem Alibocas 

  
  

MINUTES OF JULY 27, 2011 PRE- PROPOSAL CONFERENCE 
 

Attendees:  
Deputy Director, Alla Ayzenshtat-DDC 
Assistant Director, Kash Putnam, P.E.-DDC 
Inspector, David Heitner-DDC 
Contract Manager, Kareem Alibocas-DDC 
(See list for attendees) 
 
GENERAL 
  
Kareem Alibocas introduced himself as DDC’s ACCO Contract Manager for the subject contract.  Kash 
Putnam introduced himself as DDC’s Project Manager for the subject contract, and made the following 
introductory remarks: 
 
This contract is for performing inspection services, plant audits, and vendor approvals at various locations 
throughout the United States and overseas countries such as China and India.  Descriptions of the plants 
are in the contract (the RFP and contract can be found at http://ddcftp.nyc.gov/rfpweb/). Locations listed in 
the contract are only examples of some of the locations that would require inspection. 
 
This contract is not based on an open bid.  Rather, It is based on the qualifications of the company. This is 
a Quality Based Selection (QBS) project. DDC will rank proposals by technical merit, and negotiate a fair 
and reasonable price with the highest ranked firm. Should negotiations fail with the highest ranked firm, 
DDC will authorize fee negotiation with the next highest ranked firm. 
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The technical proposal must be submitted on or before 4:00 P.M. on August 8, 2011. 

 
 
The following is a summation of questions and answers from the conference.  Any errors in the 
responses have been corrected; the following should be considered the official responses to the 
questions. 
 

1) Question:    Will time for traveling to a plant be paid? 
 
Answer:       The time for an inspector traveling to a plant will not be paid. However, if air travel is 

involved, the contract allows for a flat fee of $200 to be paid to the consultant. This 
fee is separate from air fare expenses which will also be paid. Proof of air travel will 
need to be submitted upon request from DDC. 

 
 

2)  Question:  Will overseas travel be required?  
      
     Answer:       Yes. Occasionally, overseas inspection trips are required (usually to India or China). 

DDC would prefer the consultant to have satellite offices in other countries, but this is 
not a requirement.  (Overseas work is expected to be less than 10% of the total 
inspections) 

 
 
 3)  Question:  How will the work be coordinated? 
 

Answer: All work will be coordinated by DDC. Inspectors will need to have cell phones so that 
they can be in contact with DDC’s personnel. Inspections will normally be scheduled 
at least five business days in advance. Inspections that are cancelled are usually 
cancelled in advance. Inspections are for one to five days but may be shortened by a 
day or two if the job is completed ahead of schedule, or if a manufacturer’s schedule 
changes.  There may be more than one inspection taking place at different locations 
simultaneously. It is not unusual for two or three different inspections to take place at 
the same time in different locations. 

 
4)  Question:  Will DDC provide the consultant with proper forms? 

 
Answer:  Yes. DDC will provide the consultant with all appropriate checklists, specifications, 

forms, logs, report forms, payment forms, etc. 
 
 
     5)  Question:  Is there overnight stay? 

 
Answer:  Yes. The amount of overnight travel involved depends on the number of regional 

offices the consultant uses. The greater the number of local inspectors the consultant 
can provide, the less of a need  for overnight stay. The definition of overnight stay is 
based on NYC Directive 6. Local driving mileage will be reimbursed by using the 
allowable rates. 
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6)  Question:  Does the P.E have to be licensed in the State of New York? 
 

Answer:   No.  It is not a requirement for the P.E. to be licensed in the State of New York, but 
the P.E. must have the required experience.   

 
 

7)  Question:  Will there be full time inspectors at the plants? 
 
Answer:  No. DDC will schedule all inspections on an as needed basis. DDC will send the 

consultant an inspection request. The consultant will send DDC an estimate for the 
inspection. DDC will then issue a Work Order Letter which will list the dates of the 
inspection and the hours per day required. DDC may extend or cancel an 
assignment at anytime. Typically, an inspection is scheduled for two or three days 
and is usually scheduled for eight hours per day, but some inspections may require 
additional hours.  DDC will not pay extra for overtime work. Overtime hours must be 
authorized in writing by DDC (DDC will pay the standard rate for all hours worked). 
Extra hours needed to complete an inspection may also be requested by the 
consultant. 

 
 

8)  Question:  Will the consultant be required to work during the weekend? 
 

Answer:  Usually not, but on a rare occasion weekend work may be requested. 
 
 

9)  Question: Does an auditor have to be ISO 9000 certified? 
 
Answer:  An auditor does not have to be ISO 9000 certified but it is preferred. DDC’s Bureau 

of Quality Assurance and Construction Safety uses ISO 9000 guidelines. Typically a 
two-person team is used for audits – one ISO auditor, and the other an inspector 
performing product audit (testing, inspection). 

 
 

10) Question: Are part time employees acceptable? 
 
  Answer:  Part time employees are acceptable.     

 
 

11) Question: Does the stipulated unit prices for tests include labor? 
  
 Answer:  No. The stipulated unit price for tests is for the test only.  This does not include labor. 

However, for chemical analysis, tensile testing, charpy testing and metalography, no 
extra will be paid for labor.  
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12) Question: For chemical analysis, is the unit price for each element tested? 

  
Answer:  Yes. The chemical analysis is for each element tested. However DDC will advise the 

consultant on which elements should be tested. 
 

 
13) Question: Will field work be required in New York City? 

  
Answer:  Typically, there is no field work required in New York City. However, the consultant 

may occasionally be required to perform a Welder Qualification. 
 
 

14) Question: How many approved inspectors does DDC require per plant? 
  
Answer:  DDC usually needs multiple approved resumes for each type of inspection required. 

(At least two approved inspectors is the minimum required). Only one approved 
Contract Executive can be deployed. 

 
 

15) Question: When are inspection reports required? 
  
Answer:  Preliminary daily inspection reports are required by E-Mail the next day. Final 

inspection reports (Daily and Summary) are required within a week. Please note that 
any rejections of items require an immediate phone call to DDC. Each inspector 
assigned to DDC’s work is required to carry a cell phone so that DDC’s personnel 
can reach him/her during working hours.  

 
 

16) Question: When will the contract start? 
       

Answer:  DDC is hoping to start the contract around October, 2011. However delays may 
change this date. 

 
 
Any additional questions can  be directed to Kareem Alibocas by e-mail at alibocaka@ddc.nyc.gov.  
 
The conference was adjourned when it was clear that there were no more questions. 
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